
  
DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority 

(DERWA) 
Board of Directors 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
TIME:  6 p.m.                                  DATE: Monday, May 16, 2022 
PLACE:   Teleconference 
   
Due to the current state of emergency and imminent health risks to in-person attendees, because of 
COVID-19, and in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 54953(e), 
Directors will attend this meeting via teleconference. The Boardroom will be closed to the public; the 
public may observe and comment by electronic means. All votes during the meeting will be taken by 
roll call vote.  
 
The call-in information for the Board of Directors and the public is as follows: 

 
Meeting URL  
Meeting ID:  
Passcode: 
Phone Number:  

https://ralphandersen.zoom.us/j/84959281811 
849 5928 1811 
308470 
+1 669 900 6833, 84959281811# US (San Jose) 

 
Any member of the public may speak during Public Comment or may email public comments to the 
Authority Secretary at genzale@dsrsd.com by May 16, 2022, at 5 p.m., and comments will be read 
into the meeting record. 
 
See Page 3 of the Agenda for additional details on Teleconference Access Information 
 
 
 AGENDA 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

The mission of the DSRSD⠂EBMUD Recycled Water Authority is to maximize the amount of recycled water 
delivered while recovering its costs; in doing so it will provide a reliable and consistent supply of recycled 
water to DSRSD and EBMUD for service to each of the agencies' customers. 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 Recommended 
    Action      .    
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
  

3. ROLL CALL - Members:   Rubio, Coleman, Vonheeder-Leopold, and Mellon 
   Alternates:  Johnson and Young 
 
4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES 
 
5. DECLARATION OF TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS    
 

A. Authorize and Adopt Remote Teleconference Meetings of DERWA  Approve by 
Pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act      Resolution 
            
 
 
   

https://ralphandersen.zoom.us/j/84959281811


DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority                        Board of Directors 
Agenda, Regular Meeting of May 16, 2022  Page 2   

 
                                                
6. PUBLIC COMMENT (Meeting Open to Public)    

At this time, those in the teleconference may address the Board on any item not already 
included in the agenda; however, State Law provides no action may be taken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda. Comments should not exceed five minutes. 
If this is not considered sufficient time to address the issue, please arrange with the 
Authority Secretary to have that item placed on the agenda for a future Board meeting. 

   
7. CONSENT CALENDAR            Approve by  

Matters listed under this item are considered routine and will be enacted by                           Motion      
one action in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless requested by a Member of the Board or the public prior  
to the time the Board votes on the Motion to adopt. 
 
A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of March 28, 2022 

B. Approve Treasurer’s Reports for February 28, and March 31, 2022 
 
8. BOARD BUSINESS                       
               
 A. Approve and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Capital and     Approve by
  Operating Expenditure Budget        Resolution 
 
 B. Approve and Establish the Location, Time and Place of Regular   Approve by  
  DERWA Board Meetings          Resolution 
 
 C. Approve Appointment of Authority Manager       Approve by  
              Resolution
                                                                                             
9. MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A.   Discuss the Use of DERWA Resolutions for Approving DERWA Board Actions 
B.   Update on DSRSD Tri-Valley Residential Fill Station 
C.   Other Authority Manager Reports  
D.   Discuss Future Board Meeting Dates 

                                      
10.      BOARD MEMBER ITEMS 
 
11.  ADJOURNMENT        
                  

During this period of modified Brown Act requirements, DERWA will use its best efforts to swiftly resolve requests 
for reasonable modifications or accommodations with differently abled individuals, consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, and resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. All materials made available or 
distributed in open session at Board meetings are public information and are available for inspection by calling the 
Authority Secretary at (925) 828-0515. If special accommodations are needed, please contact the Authority 
Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to the meeting.   



DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority                        Board of Directors 
Agenda, Regular Meeting of May 16, 2022                                             Page 3                       

 
   

 
Zoom Teleconference Access Information 
DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority 

Regular Board Meeting 
Monday, May 16, 2022, at 6 p.m. 

 
Due to the current state of emergency and imminent health risks to in-person attendees, because of 
COVID-19, and in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 54953(e), 
Directors will attend this meeting via teleconference. The Boardroom will be closed to the public; the 
public may observe and comment by electronic means. All votes during the meeting will be taken by 
roll call vote.  
 
The call-in information for the Board of Directors and the public is as follows: 
 

Meeting URL  
Meeting ID:  
Passcode: 
Phone Number:  

https://ralphandersen.zoom.us/j/84959281811 
849 5928 1811 
308470 
+1 669 900 6833, 84959281811# US (San Jose) 

 
1. You are encouraged to observe and participate in the Board meeting via Zoom or telephone. 
 
2.  If you are joining the meeting via Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, press the 

"raise a hand" button. If you are joining the meeting by phone, press *9 to indicate a desire to 
make a comment. The chair will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to 
comment. Speakers will be limited to five minutes. 

 
3.  If you choose not to observe the Board meeting but wish to submit a comment on a specific 

agenda item, please submit your comment via email by 5 p.m. prior to the Board meeting to 
the Authority Secretary at genzale@dsrsd.com. Your comment will be placed into the record at 
the Board meeting. 

 
4.  If you are observing the Board meeting and wish to submit either a general public comment or 

to comment on a specific agenda item as it is being heard, you may also submit your written 
comment, limited to 250 words or less, to the Authority Secretary at genzale@dsrsd.com, 
noting in the subject line: For Public Comment. Every effort will be made to read your 
comment into the record, but some comments may not be read due to time limitations. 
Comments received after an agenda item will be made part of the record if received prior to the 
end of the meeting.                                                                                                                                         

https://ralphandersen.zoom.us/j/84959281811


Item 5.A 

  
Prepared by   JR              
 
 
 

  
DERWA 

Summary & Recommendation 
 

Authorize and Adopt Remote Teleconference Meetings of DERWA Pursuant  
to the Ralph M. Brown Act 

 
 

Summary: 
 

On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in California due to 
the threat of COVID-19, which prompted the Governor to issue Executive Order (N-29-20) permitting local 
governments to meet remotely without following all the teleconferencing requirements contained in the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, the State’s local agency public meetings law.  

With the expiration of Executive Order N-29-20 on September 30, 2021, the Governor signed into law 
Assembly Bill 361 adding Government Code section 54953(e) to make provisions for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions. 
Under the new law, DERWA can conduct virtual meetings where the Governor has proclaimed a State of 
Emergency and the Board of Directors has declared the need to meet remotely to protect the health and 
safety of attendees.  

Assembly Bill 361 additionally requires that all meeting agendas, meeting dates, times, and way the public 
may participate in the public meetings, as well as offering public comment by telephone or internet-based 
service options including video conference, are posted on DERWA’s website and physically outside of the 
office.  

Recommendation: 
 
As a result of the continued threat of COVID-19, the Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of 
Directors authorize, by Resolution No. 22-4, conducting open and public meetings via remote 
teleconference pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953(e) for a period of 30 days, from 
May 16, 2022 through June 15, 2022; and that the Board shall comply with the requirements to provide 
the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953.   

 

May 16, 2022 
 
Attachment 
 
     1.  DERWA Resolution No. 22-4 
 

 



             Attachment 1 

1 
 

DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-4 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF DERWA 
PURSUANT TO THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT 
 

WHEREAS, the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (“DERWA”) is committed to 

preserving public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, all meetings of DERWA are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. 

Brown Act (Government Code, §§ 54950 – 54963) (“Brown Act”), so that any member of the 

public may attend, participate, and watch DERWA’s legislative body conduct its business; and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 361 added Government Code Section 54953(e) to make 

provisions for remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative 

body, without compliance with the requirements of Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), 

subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the 

Governor pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions 

of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by 

conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or 

recommended measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body determines that 

meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist within DERWA, specifically, on March 4, 2020, 

Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in California due to the 

threat of COVID-19; despite sustained efforts, the virus continues to spread and has impacted 

nearly all sectors of California; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that meeting in person would 

present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that DERWA shall conduct its 

meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code Section 

54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that the Board shall comply with 

the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph 

(2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   

WHEREAS, all meeting agendas, meeting dates, times, and manner in which the public 

may participate in the public meetings of DERWA and offer public comment by telephone or 



DERWA 
Res. No. 22-4 

2 
 

internet-based service options including video conference are posted on the DERWA website 

and physically outside of the DERWA office. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of 

Alameda and Contra Costa, California, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Risks to Health and Safety of Attendees. The Board of Directors hereby 

determines that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety 

of attendees.  

Section 3. Remote Teleconference Meetings. Authority staff are hereby authorized and 

directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 

Resolution, including conducting open and public meetings in accordance with 

Government Code Section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Section 4. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 

upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of June 15, 2022, or such time 

the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government 

Code Section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which DERWA may continue to 

teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 

54953. 

  ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 16th day of May 2022, and passed by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
   
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
 

      _____________________________ 
      Marisol Rubio, DERWA Chair 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ___________________________________ 
                Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 
 



  Item 7.A 
 

  DRAFT 

DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY 
(DERWA) 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, March 28, 2022 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Chair Marisol Rubio called the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) 

meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 
Due to the current state of emergency and imminent health risks to in-person attendees, because of 
COVID-19, and in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section 54953(e), the 
Board meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference. The Boardroom was closed to the public; the public 
could observe and comment by electronic means. All votes during the meeting were taken by roll call 
vote. 

 
2. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  
 
3. ROLL CALL – Directors present: Chair Marisol Rubio, Vice Chair John Coleman, Directors Georgean 

Vonheeder-Leopold, and Frank Mellon. DERWA Staff present: John Rossi, Authority Manager; Richard 
Lou, Treasurer; Scott Shapiro and Austin Cho, General Counsel; and Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary 

 
4. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS/ACTIVITIES – None 
 
5. DECLARATION OF TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
 

A. Authorize and Adopt Remote Teleconference Meetings of DERWA Pursuant to the Ralph M. 
Brown Act  

 
Motion by Vice Chair Coleman, Second by Director Vonheeder-Leopold to Adopt Resolution No. 
22-2, Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of DERWA Pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown 
Act. Motion carried (4-0) by the following vote: 

 
AYES: Coleman, Vonheeder-Leopold, Mellon, Rubio 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – 6:03 p.m. – None 
 
7.   CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of February 7, 2022 
 

B. Approve Treasurer’s Report for January 31, 2022 
 

Motion by Director Mellon, Second by Director Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold to approve the 
Consent Calendar. Motion carried (4-0) by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Mellon, Vonheeder-Leopold, Coleman, Rubio 
 
 
 
 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  March 28, 2022 
 
 

  2 DRAFT 

  8. BOARD BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water with Dublin San 
Ramon Services District and East Bay Municipal Utility District 

 
Motion by Director Mellon, Second by Director Vonheeder-Leopold, to Adopt Resolution No. 22-
3, to Approve Interim Agreement Related to the Supply and Sale of Recycled Water with Dublin 
San Ramon Services District and East Bay Municipal Utility District. Motion carried (4-0) by the 
following vote: 
 

               AYES: Mellon, Vonheeder-Leopold, Coleman, Rubio 
 

9. MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A. Update on DERWA Budget Preparation 
 
Authority Manager Rossi reported that DERWA, DSRSD, and EMBUD staff are working together 
to prepare the budget and that the process is going well. Mr. Rossi noted that they are looking 
deeper than ever before into operations and expect additional costs to come through, which will 
be provided in detail at the May 16th Board Meeting. Mr. Rossi thanked everyone that has been 
working on the budget. 
 

B. Update on Authority Manager Transition 
 

Authority Manager Rossi reported that DSRSD and EBMUD staff will be making 
recommendations to consider appointment of the next Authority Manager at the May 16th 
Board Meeting. Mr. Rossi noted that their focus is on ensuring there is an overlap in time to 
complete all the handoffs so there is a seamless transition. Chair Rubio thanked Mr. Rossi for all 
the work that he has been doing. 
    

C. Discuss Frequency of DERWA Board Meetings 
 

Authority Manager Rossi reported that there has been discussion with DSRSD staff to propose 
reducing the number of DERWA’s statutory Board meetings from five to three meetings 
annually, therefore saving staff time and providing the ability to plan ahead. In the last three to 
five years, DERWA typically scheduled five Board meetings per year, but two of the scheduled 
meetings were usually cancelled. Mr. Rossi noted that more information will be presented to 
the Board for consideration at the May 16th Board meeting.  

 
D. Discuss the Use of DERWA Resolutions for Approving DERWA Board Actions 

 
Authority Manager Rossi noted that DERWA is considering ways to make staff workload as 
efficient as possible, given all the challenges that staff has with their day-to-day business, and is 
proposing reducing the number of resolutions that are used for approving Board actions. 
 
Authority Secretary Genzale, DSRSD Executive Services Supervisor/District Secretary, reported 
that DSRSD recently analyzed the number of resolutions that were produced over a three-to-
five-year timeline, and the DSRSD Board determined that it would like to see a decrease in those 
documents, as many of the related items did not require approval by resolution. Ms. Genzale 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  March 28, 2022 
 
 

  3 DRAFT 

also noted that the reduction would positively affect staff workload.  
 
Mr. Rossi noted that this item will be brought back to the Board for discussion at the May 16th 
Board meeting.  

  
E. Update on DERWA Operations 

 
Authority Manager Rossi introduced DSRSD Operations Director Jeff Carson who reported that 
due to the drought situation in the State, the recycled water season started early in March. Mr. 
Carson further reported that for Operations to provide the supply to meet demand, a pilot test 
is being utilized at the treatment plant to store supplied water for consistent production. The 
pilot is entering its second year of testing. Engineering staff is completing an assessment for 
modifications to reduce the efforts for production supplied water in the available wet weather 
basins during dry weather times. 
  
Mr. Carson also stated that supply, materials and chemical costs are up, and shortages are real; 
however, staff  anticipates availability of all equipment for the upcoming season and all 
reservoirs are ready for storage.  
 
Director Mellon inquired if DSRSD plans to make recycled water available to the public as was 
done the last time there was a major drought. DSRSD Assistant General Manager Jan Lee noted 
DSRSD has partnered with the cities of Livermore and Pleasanton to open a joint residential 
recycled water fill station on the District’s Gleason property located in Dublin. The DSRSD Board 
approved moving forward with the project. DSRSD General Manager Dan McIntyre provided a 
schedule of the upcoming project. 
 

F. Update on DERWA Projects 
 

• Authority Manager Rossi stated that recently promoted DSRSD Engineering Services 
Director Steve Delight will provide an update on the Gleason Recycled Water Fill Station 
project at the May 16th Board meeting.  

 
• Authority Manager Rossi stated that the Spring recycled water message is expected to 

go out in mid-April. 
 

• Authority Manager Rossi reported that it was a light year for CIP projects for the 
recycled water plant, noting that there were replacements for pumps, motors, and 
electrical connectors. Mr. Rossi stated that further details will be presented in the 
proposed budget at the May 16th Board Meeting. 

 
G. Confirm Next Board Meeting – May 16, 2022 

 
The Board confirmed the May 16, 2022, Board meeting will be held due to business needs.  

 
10.  BOARD MEMBER ITEMS – None 
 
 
 
 



DERWA Regular Meeting Minutes  March 28, 2022 
 
 

  4 DRAFT 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Rubio adjourned the meeting at 6:26 p.m. 
 

Submitted by,  
 
 
Nicole Genzale, CMC 
Authority Secretary 



Item 7.B 

Prepared by     RL                                                                                                    Reviewed by_________ 

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve Treasurer’s Reports for February 28, and March 31, 2022  

 
 
  
 

Summary: 
 
Attached are the Treasurer’s Reports for the months ending February 28, 2022, and March 31, 
2022, submitted by Treasurer Richard Lou.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Treasurer recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Motion, the Treasurer’s 
Reports for the months ending February 28, 2022, and March 31, 2022. 
 
May 16, 2022 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Treasurer’s Report – February 28, 2022 
2. Treasurer’s Report – March 31, 2022 

 
 
 
 



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	��������	�� 	�!��	�����	��"���	#$$%&'()	*+	$'(	,-./#	01234512164	72891:	;91	:<2	=9>:<	(?)*?@	A(BCD%CE	FGH	FIFFJ	#	+DKK%CE	LM	$C%?+%&$*L?+	%?)	C(&LKK(?)%$*L?	MLNNLO+J	.(P(?D(+QAD?)*?@R	,DC*?@	$'(	KL?$'H	STUVHGWX	*?	%@(?&E	C(*KBDC+(K(?$+	OYZY	C(&(*P()J	A*+&%N	E(%C[$L[)%$(	C(P(?D(	MLC	A\FF	$L$%N()	SFHIWXHTVTJ	]L	L$'(C	K*+&(NN%?(LD+	̂%EK(?$+	O(C(	C(&(*P()	$'*+	KL?$'J		-_̂(?+(+R	̀DCC(?$	KL?$'	)*+BDC+(K(?$+	O(C(	SVWTHTaIJ	A*+&%N	E(%C[$L[)%$(	(_̂(?)*$DC(+	MLC	A\FF	$L$%N	SFHbWTHGFFc	LM	O'*&'	SFHWFVHWaG	O%+	MLC	L̂(C%$*?@	(_̂(?+(+J	-_̂(?)*$DC(+	)L	?L$	C(MN(&$	%NN	+$%MM	%?)	&L?+DN$%?$	&L+$+	*?&DCC()	BD$	?L$	E($	B*NN()	$L	,-./#	*?	A\FFJ	%̀+'R	d'(	&%+'	B%N%?&(	%$	A(BCD%CE	FGH	FIFF	O%+	SbHGabHGTIJ	eDBK*$$()	BER	.*&'%C)	fLD	dC(%+DC(C	,%$()R	g%C&'	FWH	FIFF	hC(̂%C()	BEiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii	jgJ	kLD&lm	.(P*(O()	BEiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii	j#J	g*NN(Cm	nopqrs	tuvv wxyxvuzz{	|xy}~�	�{	nopqrs	tuvv	wuv~�	����������	��������	�������txzz~�s	�}��~u wxyxvuzz{	|xy}~�	�{	txzz~�s	�}��~u	wuv~�	����������	��������	�������

�������	���	����	���	����	� ¡¢ 	£¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬	®̄°

Attachment 1



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$���&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"()*+,)-+�.+/01�2 3��������������������� 456785624������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 456785624��������� 95:;:5<=8����� :524756<4�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�= 3��������������������� 9566;52=8������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 9566;52=8��������� :5;;=5=79����� 7465;67��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�: 3��������������������� =5=;7588:������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =5=;7588:��������� 2542<5=89����� 67754<<��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�9 3��������������������� 257295<6<������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 257295<6<��������� :7:57;6�������� 25=625=49�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�6 3��������������������� 259:85<<2������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 259:85<<2��������� =8852<6�������� 25=:854<7�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�7 3��������������������� 7546<5;7<������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 7546<5;7<��������� 9:854;9�������� 75:=<58;6�����>?+/@A+-@�(,/-@ 3��������������������� 2654:=54<9����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2654:=54<9������� ;5<9;5;9:����� 754;:5<62�����(BA*�C@/@)D-E 3��������������������� ;567:5=<9������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� ;567:5=<9��������� 75447579;����� 254;75797�����F/@+?�>/-GE 3��������������������� 2=5:<:59;:����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2=5:<:59;:������� 45==2566=����� 652425<:2�����(1/E+�=�()*+,)-+�H�(BA*�C@/@)D- 3��������������������� :597=5<:;������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :597=5<:;��������� 3������������������� :597=5<:;�����I/0GJD-+�KD??DE)D- 3��������������������� 2528<5889������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2528<5889��������� 2==5:8=�������� <;7548=��������CKLML 3��������������������� :9254=7���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :9254=7������������ 2<954;9�������� 2975<9=��������NIOPM�()*+,)-+�(1/E+�=5�:�H9 3��������������������� 78=52<:���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 78=52<:������������ 3������������������� 78=52<:��������Q)-+�C0?++-)-R 3��������������������� <=45;22���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� <=45;22������������ 6=;5;6=�������� :<;5<6<��������S+TU.+*,/0+A+-@�K/*)@/,�V68W =8;5888��������� :=25<;4���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :=25<;4������������ 2;:56::�������� 2:;5969��������OQUPX�KD-@?D,�(?DR?/A)-R�P*Y/@+ 3��������������������� 2995:77���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2995:77������������ ;=5=;<���������� 7=5844����������(?DR?/A�(,/--)-R�H�L)?�.+,)+Z 3��������������������� 659<257=:������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 659<257=:��������� =57<757;6����� =54<95<:;�����(,/--)-R��(?)D?�[+/?E 3��������������������� :57765::8������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :57765::8��������� 254<7582=����� 25;7<5:2;�����(+?A/-+-@�CB**,\�CB**,]� 3��������������������� 259;85<7=������� 3������������������������ 9;8����������������� 259;2599=��������� ;6<5=:7�������� 7==5=87��������(C.32�XQM�.+*,/0+A+-@ 3��������������������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������L)?�.+,)+Z�X/,̂+�.+1/J),)@/@)D-U.+*,/0+A+-@ 965888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������CQPX�/-Y�OQ�_*+?/@)D-/,�L-/,]E)E 685888����������� 3���������������������� 2<5=:6�������������� :9577=������������ :9577=�������������� 265<96���������� 2;5424����������K1,D?)-+�O)̀+?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 665888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 2=57==������������ 2=57==�������������� 65;87������������ 75;27������������CQPX�K/J,+�a/?-+EE�.+*,/0+A+-@ 465888����������� 3���������������������� ;=574=�������������� ;=574=������������ ;=574=�������������� :;58=<���������� 99579:����������PX�b/A*�N,+0@?)0/,�KD--+0@D?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 685888����������� 3���������������������� 6258=7�������������� 6258=7������������ 6258=7�������������� =:594=���������� =45669����������>c(C�XQM�P*R?/Y+E 7:5888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������OQ�O+AJ?/-+�.+*,/0+ 3��������������������� 7<;5;::���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 7<;5;::������������ ::65998�������� :7:5:<:��������bXLOFL�KD--+0@)D- 3��������������������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������7@1�.F>(�C/-Y�Q),@+? 3��������������������� =66����������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =66������������������� =4����������������� ==;���������������MF.�c.FO3�(?D*�;9�.Y�:�M?DBR1@�(?Dd+0@ 3��������������������� 2759:=������������ 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2759:=�������������� ;5=27������������ ;5=27������������(C.2�U.+0]\�F/@+?�>?+/@A+-@�Ǹ*/-E)D- :65888����������� 26562;5;6=����� 3������������������������ 65=9:�������������� 2656=958<6������� <5;29562;����� 6548<5644�����(,+/E/-@D-�K/*)@/,�I),,)-RUKD-@)-R+-0] 3��������������������� 654<:5=88������� 3������������������������ 25<:<�������������� 654<652:<��������� 3������������������� 654<652:<�����K/*)@/,)e+Y�c-@+?+E@ 3��������������������� 25<785;4=������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 25<785;4=��������� <785;=4�������� 258885896�����fg�h������������ ���hijkhi�i��� �f�hljj������������ �gghkii���������� ���hk�fh�fg����� f�hfljh�kg��� f�h�j�hll����mnopqrstu�v�srow ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$����&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"MN.FL�(?DR?/A�O/-/R+? =;85688��������� :5;=<59;4������� 45=2;���������������� 7=529;������������ :5;<257:6��������� =54;45822����� 2528957=9�����>?+/EB?+? ;45888����������� =5<965<=:������� 3������������������������ :75;::������������ =5<;=5467��������� =5=:45877����� 49657<8��������b+R/,�KDB-E+, 465888����������� 6:85<24���������� 966������������������� =5;88�������������� 6::5424������������ 9885=;;�������� 2::59=<��������C+0?+@/?] =85888����������� =9:5:62���������� 77;������������������� :547;�������������� =94522<������������ 2;65::<�������� 7254;8����������_@1+? 2:85888��������� 2572=526=������� 3������������������������ 2=:5848���������� 254:65===��������� 25:825924����� 9::5;86��������_*+?/@)D-�/-Y�O/)-@+-/-0+�M+@/), :56<<5<98������ =9527=5777����� 96:52<7������������ 25;<4566<������� =758785==6������� 2<5;;65<6=��� 752495=4:�����M+J@�C+?̂)0+ 25796562:������ =75<7656<;����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =75<7656<;������� 2956:756=:��� 2=59=<5846���fhgjxhlfj������ k�h�l�h�li����� ik�hfjx������������ �h��kh�xg������� k�hi�kh�x�������� i�hjjjhflk��� ��h�g�hkxk����%yz�����y�{|$ khi�ghlfj �k�hx�khf�g k�ihix� �hj�ihg�� �kfh�i�hjj� l�hl�khkki x�h��ihkkk%�}�~'�$����'~��~! �	����������� �����"�����LR+-0]�KD-@?)JB@)D-MC.CM 3��������������������� 3����������������������NIOPM 3��������������������� 3����������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�MC.CM :2;54:4��������� 252785<7;�������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�NIOPM 2=:5<6:��������� 99=52=:����������KDAA+?0)/,�(/*+?�cEEB+Y 3��������������������� 3����������������������(,+/E/-@D-�*/]A+-@E 2952=<����������� 92652::����������c-@+?+E@�U�KD-@?/0@E 3��������������������� 25=98��������������O)E0�c-0DA+ 3��������������������� 3����������������������>_>Lb�.NXNSPNC�H�QPSMcS� 9675;2<��������� =582<5979�������KLCa�LXLcbLIbN �	����������� �����"�����I+R)--)-R�K/E1 958:259<2������ 25<245<<=������� (?+*/?+Y�J]��������������������������� ���������I+R\�I/,/-0+�LYd 3��������������������� =5=625=87������� ��������������������������������������������O/@@�aDB0G M/@+.DB-Y)-R 3��������������������� 3����������������������3��������������������� 3����������������������>D@/,�.+̂+-B+E�H�QB-Y)-R 9675;2<��������� =582<5979������� L**?D̂+Y�J]�������������������������� ���������>D@/,�Ǹ*+-Y)@B?+E �7295948��������� �=5:295;==������� ���������������������������������������������L-Y?+/�O),,+? M/@+N-Y)-R�K/E1 :5;4:5;98������ :5;4:5;98�������8

����"�y������������������"�����

�{���{|����%yz���

����"�������"��������������"�����

�$%$�����'��%����|����{��%�{'��y%����%�{$'%�%�$�%��y%��y%�������%�y���~�������%'{%���gh�����

����������������������������������������������� �¡¢¡¡£¢¤£¡¥�¥¦ ¦¡ ¤¡�§¢̈©¢¢©�����ª��«��ª���������������������������ª��«��ª������� �¡¢¡¡£¢¤£¡¬�¥¥ ¤¬ ¦�§¢̈©¢¢©



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*(+*)) )((((,(-. /0112334/5678266462197!26478!��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>?)*)@A ?BCD(+ B,.D,C4444444444444444 )+)DB)4444444444444444 � ?BCD(+ (D((()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>E:�J���J�4,.KA @L)C.D.C @L)C.D.C4444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( @L)C.D.C()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>2:�J���J�4)?KA ,L@.CD@( :4444444444444444444444 ,L@.CD@(4444444444444 ! (D(( ,L@.CD@(()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>;"��M���J�)?KA ,L@.CD@( :4444444444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( ,L@.CD@(()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>E:�J���J�4,.KA BB+D-. BB+D-.4444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( BB+D-.()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>2:�J���J�4)?KA -)-D.- :4444444444444444444444 -)-D.-4444444444444444 ! (D(( -)-D.-()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E47�G46H594I4<H4>;"��M���J�)?KA -)-D.- :4444444444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( -)-D.-()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E4594F�N�4!J���O�J�4>E:�J���J�4,.KA )-L,?+D@@ )-L,?+D@@44444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( )-L,?+D@@()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E4594F�N�4!J���O�J�>2:�J���J�4)?KA +-L??.DC? :4444444444444444444444 +-L??.DC?44444444444 ! (D(( +-L??.DC?()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E4594F�N�4!J���O�J�4>;"��M���J�)?KA +-L??.DC? :4444444444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( +-L??.DC?()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76��:6�O�����P4>?)*)@A ++?DC- @,DC+444444444444444444 --D()444444444444444444 � ++?DC- (D((()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76��:�������� 4>?)*)@A +,?L@(BDC- +(.L,)(D)?444444444 ,+L-@BD..44444444444 � +,?L@(BDC- (D((()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76��:6�O�����P4>?)*)@A BB(D-, -C.D),4444444444444444 +B,D+(4444444444444444 � BB(D-, (D((()*(,*)) )((((,-++ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76��:�������� 4>?)*)@A -(BL-C(D-( )+CL@@+D()444444444 @BLB(CD)@44444444444 � -(BL-C(D-( (D((()*(,*)) )((((,)C( /0112334/5678266462197!26478!��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>?)*)@A ,CBD(+ -B.D,+4444444444444444 +-@D.(4444444444444444 � ,CBD(+ (D((()*+(*)) )((((,?(? 1�"�Q40�R��M��4I40MMJO����M ��:;� 4<��� ��:6�"��P4>?)*)@A BLB-BD(( -LC@BD)(4444444444444 +LB,CD@(4444444444444 � BLB-BD(( (D((()*+(*)) )((((,.,- /0112334/5678266462197!26478!��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>?)*)@A ,)CD(+ -(@D@C4444444444444444 +)(D+)4444444444444444 � ,)CD(+ (D((()*+@*)) )((((B+(? E�S82T4/108EL4FF; ��:E��U�4F� �"4!JV�M�"4>?)*)@A ,BBD(( -)?D.(4444444444444444 +)?D,(4444444444444444 � ,BBD(( (D((()*+@*)) )((((B+(@ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E46H594!�W"�4X����MM4>E:�J���J�4,.KA -@L()CD+( -@L()CD+(44444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( -@L()CD+(()*+@*)) )((((B+(@ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E46H594!�W"�4X����MM4>2:�J���J�4)?KA ))L-)+D,) :4444444444444444444444 ))L-)+D,)44444444444 ! (D(( ))L-)+D,)()*+@*)) )((((B+(@ E5/F784608410<�8462197!264E76!��:E616E46H594!�W"�4X����MM44>;"��M���J�)?KA ))L-)+D,) :4444444444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 ! (D(( ))L-)+D,):4444444444444444444444 :4444444444444444444444 (D(( (D((.+,L,?(D)( ,()L.B.D(. +?(LB))D-) ,.+LB-?DB- +B)LC-)D.?!����=�O���M4J=4E�MWDSY42�R�� 44440NJV��4)())*()*(+ ?BCD(+Z444444444444)())*()*(, B),L.)(D),Z4444 ;"��M���J�:4 ,+L)C+D@)444444444444)())*()*+( BLC.,D(+Z444444444)())*()*+@ @-L+).DC,Z444444 4 (D((1�OJ�O�"�R(D((1�OJ�O�"�R�; ,.+LB-?DB-444444444 (D((1�OJ�O�"�R!0; +B)LC-)D.?444444444 (D((1�OJ�O�"�R.+,L,?(D)(Z444444;������R4WP [[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[ [[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[444444444444<���4XJVOY E���0���JG�R4WP [[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[ [[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[[4444444444440�R���4<�""�� E���

�����\�����4���]����4̂���4��_��̀]������]4�a4�b��#�̀����4a��4_�4���̀��4�#���a�&�$���4ccd4cecc

fghijk4lmnn opqpnmrrs4tpquvw4xs4fghijk4lmnn4omnvy4z{zz|{}|z~4~�y�zy�}4�{��{{�lprrv�k4�uw�vmopqpnmrrs4tpquvw4xs4lprrv�k4�uw�vm4omnvy4z{zz|{}|z�4~~y�{y�}4�{��{{�



����������	
������ ������� ������������ ������� !�"�#��$%�&'�(�)**�+,+-,.�/0,12345�2617.8-97861:;<=<;�>?@ABCDEAC?@� ����FGHI;�>?@ABCDEAC?@� ����JKL@MN�=LCODEBPLOL@AP�Q�;<=<; ��R�����STJKL@MN�=LCODEBPLOL@AP�Q�FGHI; �T�������T>CAN�?U�VWLXPX@A?@�VXNOL@AP ����TR�R�Y@ALBLPA�Y@M?OL ����ZA[LB�=LCODEBPLOL@APQ�HCPM ����\,55�81]682,�̂/3+,175:GJ==F__�GI<ỲF<<�<F=aY>F<�Ỳ> Tb�bT�TT c������d;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�bT�TT c�R���S�T�d;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�bT�TT c����R�STd;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�bT�TT c����T��RTd;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�bT�TT c�����T��RSd;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�bT�TT c��������S�dGJ==F__�GI<ỲF<<�<F=aY>F<�Ỳ> Tb�bT�TT c������d=XWf[�J@gLBPL@�h�JPP?MCXALP Tb��bT�TT c��������dGJ==F__�GI<ỲF<<�<F=aY>F<�Ỳ> Tb��bT�TT c�T����d;Zi F̀j�G=J̀ ;��eeV Tb�RbT�TT c������d;IGeỲ�<J̀ �=JHZ̀ �<F=aY>F<�;Y<_ Tb�RbT�TT cRT�S�����d����������	
������ ���k��� �lkm�lkno�n��������������=?E@gC@K c����d������������������������������������	
����k��� �lkm�lkno��������������VBLfXBLg�DN����ppppppppppppppppppppppppp pppppppppppppp���������������������������������HXAA�q?EMr ;XALJffB?sLg�DN����ppppppppppppppppppppppppp pppppppppppppp���������������������������������J@gBLX�HCWWLB ;XAL

tuvwx��xyz�vu{|v}

~������������������������������~������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������



�����������	��
�
���	����	���������	�����������	������	���	���
�	���	 !  		���""	��#���			$%%&'()*	+,	%()	-./0$	12345623275	839:2;	<:2	;=3	>:?;=	)@*+@A	B&C'(	DEF	GHGGI	$	,JKK&CL	MN	%C&@,&'%+M@,	&@*	C)'MKK)@*&%+M@	NMOOMP,I		/)Q)@J),RSJ@*+@AT	-JC+@A	%()	KM@%(F	UDDVFHGD	+@	&A)@'L	C)+KWJC,)K)@%,	P&,	C)')+Q)*I	S+,'&O	L)&CX%MX*&%)	C)Q)@J)	NMC	SYGG	%M%&O)*	UGFDZ[F\V[I	]M	M%()C	K+,')OO&@)MJ,	̂&LK)@%,	P)C)	C)')+Q)*	%(+,	KM@%(I			._̂)@,),T	̀JCC)@%	KM@%(	*+,WJC,)K)@%,	P)C)	U\GZFaEHI	S+,'&O	L)&CX%MX*&%)	)_̂)@*+%JC),	NMC	SYGG	%M%&O	UGF[\HF[DGb	MN	P(+'(	UGFZE[FaDE	P&,	NMC	M̂)C&%+@A	)_̂)@,),I	._̂)@*+%JC),	*M	@M%	C)NO)'%	&OO	,%&NN	&@*	'M@,JO%&@%	'M,%,	+@'JCC)*	WJ%	@M%	L)%	W+OO)*	%M	-./0$	+@	SYGGI		̀&,(T	c()	'&,(	W&O&@')	&%	B&C'(	DEF	GHGG	P&,	UDF[VZFaZDI				dJWK+%%)*	WLT				/+'(&C*	eMJ	cC)&,JC)C			-&%)*T	$̂C+O	E\F	GHGG							fC)̂&C)*	WLggggggggggggggggggg	hBI	iMJ'jk		/)Q+)P)*	WLgggggggggggggggggg	h$I	B+OO)Ck											 lmnopq	rsttuvwvtsxxy	zvw{|}	~y	lmnopq	rstt	ust|�	����������	��������	�������rvxx|�q	�{}�|s uvwvtsxxy	zvw{|}	~y	rvxx|�q	�{}�|s	ust|�	����������	��������	�������

�������	���	����	���	����	�� �¡	¢£¤¥¦§̈©ª«¬	®̄

Attachment 2



���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	������������ �����
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$���&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"()*+,)-+�.+/01�2 3��������������������� 456785624������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 456785624��������� 95:;:5<=8����� :524756<4�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�= 3��������������������� 9566;52=8������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 9566;52=8��������� :5;;=5=79����� 7465;67��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�: 3��������������������� =5=;7588:������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =5=;7588:��������� 2542<5=89����� 67754<<��������()*+,)-+�.+/01�9 3��������������������� 257295<6<������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 257295<6<��������� :7:57;6�������� 25=625=49�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�6 3��������������������� 259:85<<2������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 259:85<<2��������� =8852<6�������� 25=:854<7�����()*+,)-+�.+/01�7 3��������������������� 7546<5;7<������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 7546<5;7<��������� 9:854;9�������� 75:=<58;6�����>?+/@A+-@�(,/-@ 3��������������������� 2654:=54<9����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2654:=54<9������� ;5<9;5;9:����� 754;:5<62�����(BA*�C@/@)D-E 3��������������������� ;567:5=<9������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� ;567:5=<9��������� 75447579;����� 254;75797�����F/@+?�>/-GE 3��������������������� 2=5:<:59;:����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2=5:<:59;:������� 45==2566=����� 652425<:2�����(1/E+�=�()*+,)-+�H�(BA*�C@/@)D- 3��������������������� :597=5<:;������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :597=5<:;��������� 3������������������� :597=5<:;�����I/0GJD-+�KD??DE)D- 3��������������������� 2528<5889������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2528<5889��������� 2==5:8=�������� <;7548=��������CKLML 3��������������������� :9254=7���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :9254=7������������ 2<954;9�������� 2975<9=��������NIOPM�()*+,)-+�(1/E+�=5�:�H9 3��������������������� 78=52<:���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 78=52<:������������ 3������������������� 78=52<:��������Q)-+�C0?++-)-R 3��������������������� <=45;22���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� <=45;22������������ 6=;5;6=�������� :<;5<6<��������S+TU.+*,/0+A+-@�K/*)@/,�V68W =8;5888��������� :=25<;4���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :=25<;4������������ 2;:56::�������� 2:;5969��������OQUPX�KD-@?D,�(?DR?/A)-R�P*Y/@+ 3��������������������� 2995:77���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2995:77������������ ;=5=;<���������� 7=5844����������(?DR?/A�(,/--)-R�H�L)?�.+,)+Z 3��������������������� 659<257=:������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 659<257=:��������� =57<757;6����� =54<95<:;�����(,/--)-R��(?)D?�[+/?E 3��������������������� :57765::8������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� :57765::8��������� 254<7582=����� 25;7<5:2;�����(+?A/-+-@�CB**,\�CB**,]� 3��������������������� 259;85<7=������� 3������������������������ 9;8����������������� 259;2599=��������� ;6<5=:7�������� 7==5=87��������(C.32�XQM�.+*,/0+A+-@ 3��������������������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������L)?�.+,)+Z�X/,̂+�.+1/J),)@/@)D-U.+*,/0+A+-@ 965888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������CQPX�/-Y�OQ�_*+?/@)D-/,�L-/,]E)E 685888����������� 3���������������������� 258=9���������������� :657;6������������ :657;6�������������� 275926���������� 2<5=48����������K1,D?)-+�O)̀+?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 665888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 2=57==������������ 2=57==�������������� 65;87������������ 75;27������������CQPX�K/J,+�a/?-+EE�.+*,/0+A+-@ 465888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ ;=574=������������ ;=574=�������������� :;58=<���������� 99579:����������PX�b/A*�N,+0@?)0/,�KD--+0@D?�.+*,/0+A+-@ 685888����������� 3���������������������� ::52:9�������������� ;95278������������ ;95278�������������� :;5429���������� 965997����������>c(C�XQM�P*R?/Y+E 7:5888����������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������OQ�O+AJ?/-+�.+*,/0+ 3��������������������� 7<;5;::���������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 7<;5;::������������ ::65998�������� :7:5:<:��������bXLOFL�KD--+0@)D- 3��������������������� 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 3������������������������ 3������������������� 3��������������������7@1�.F>(�C/-Y�Q),@+? 3��������������������� =66����������������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =66������������������� =4����������������� ==;���������������MF.�c.FO3�(?D*�;9�.Y�:�M?DBR1@�(?Dd+0@ 3��������������������� 2759:=������������ 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 2759:=�������������� ;5=27������������ ;5=27������������(C.2�U.+0]\�F/@+?�>?+/@A+-@�Ǹ*/-E)D- :65888����������� 26562;5;6=����� 3������������������������ 65=9:�������������� 2656=958<6������� <5;29562;����� 6548<5644�����(,+/E/-@D-�K/*)@/,�I),,)-RUKD-@)-R+-0] 3��������������������� 654<:5=88������� 3������������������������ 25<:<�������������� 654<652:<��������� 3������������������� 654<652:<�����K/*)@/,)e+Y�c-@+?+E@ 3��������������������� 25<785;4=������� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� 25<785;4=��������� <785;=4�������� 258885896�����fg�h������������ ���hijkhi�i��� jih�fg�������������� ���hg������������ ���hkflh��f����� f�hk�ghmg���� f�h�f�hijf���nopqrstuv�w�tspx ���������	
������������ �����
��	��������������
���������� �����
��	�����	�����������������
��	������������������������ � �����
��	����!���
�����"���# � �$%$����&��!���
�����"���'���&��!���
�����"MN.FL�(?DR?/A�O/-/R+? =;85688��������� :5;=<59;4������� 285927�������������� 4=5679������������ :5<8=5862��������� =54<95;=:����� 252845==;�����>?+/EB?+? ;45888����������� =5<965<=:������� =59;9���������������� :<5:24������������ =5<;65=98��������� =5=:;5<=<����� 4975:22��������b+R/,�KDB-E+, 465888����������� 6:85<24���������� 259=8���������������� 95==8�������������� 6:652:4������������ 9825:6:�������� 2::54;9��������C+0?+@/?] =85888����������� =9:5:62���������� =5=2<���������������� 65<;4�������������� =9<5::;������������ 2;4588:�������� 7=5::6����������_@1+? 2:85888��������� 2572=526=������� 3������������������������ 2=:5848���������� 254:65===��������� 25:825924����� 9::5;86��������_*+?/@)D-�/-Y�O/)-@+-/-0+�M+@/), :56<<5<98������ =9527=5777����� :465=2:������������ =5=4=544:������� =759:659:<������� =852745:7:��� 75=7;5847�����M+J@�C+?̂)0+ 25796562:������ =75<7656<;����� 3������������������������ 3���������������������� =75<7656<;������� 2956:756=:��� 2=59=<5846���fhgjmhlfj������ k�h�l�h�li����� jl�hmf������������� �hf�mhlj�������� k�hg�gh��f������� i�hk�mhi����� ��h�g�hk�i����%yz�����y�{|$ khi�ghlfj �k�hm�khf�g i�fhl�� �hmi�hmj� �kfhikmh�i� ljh�jkh�l� m�h�j�h�il%�}�~'�$����'~��~! �	����������� �����"�����LR+-0]�KD-@?)JB@)D-MC.CM 3��������������������� 3����������������������NIOPM 3��������������������� 3����������������������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�MC.CM ==752=6��������� 25:;458<:�������LR+-0]�.+)AJB?E+A+-@E�3�NIOPM 282594<��������� 69:578=����������KDAA+?0)/,�(/*+?�cEEB+Y 3��������������������� 3����������������������(,+/E/-@D-�*/]A+-@E 28592<����������� 9=6566=����������c-@+?+E@�U�KD-@?/0@E 3��������������������� 25=98��������������O)E0�c-0DA+ 3��������������������� 3����������������������>_>Lb�.NXNSPNC�H�QPSMcS� ::;58=:��������� =5:6459;4�������KLCa�LXLcbLIbN �	����������� �����"�����I+R)--)-R�K/E1 :5;4:5;98������ 25<245<<=������� (?+*/?+Y�J]��������������������������� ���������I+R\�I/,/-0+�LYd 3��������������������� =5=625=87������� ��������������������������������������������O/@@�aDB0G M/@+.DB-Y)-R 3��������������������� 3����������������������3��������������������� 3����������������������>D@/,�.+̂+-B+E�H�QB-Y)-R ::;58=:��������� =5:6459;4������� L**?D̂+Y�J]�������������������������� ���������>D@/,�Ǹ*+-Y)@B?+E �9=65<28��������� �=549854:=������� ���������������������������������������������L-Y?+/�O),,+? M/@+N-Y)-R�K/E1 :54;65<6:������ :54;65<6:�������8

����"�y������������������"�����

�{���{|����%yz���

����"�������"��������������"�����

�$%$�����'��%����|����{��%�{'��y%����%�{$'%�%�$�%��y%��y%�������%�y���~�����{%���j�h�����

����������������������������������������������� �¡¢¡¡£¢¤£¥¦�¥§ ¡̈ ¡¥�©¢̈ª¢¢ª�����«��¬��«���������������������������«��¬��«������� �¡¢¡¡£¢¤£¥�¥¥ ¥¥ ¦¤�©¢̈ª¢¢ª



����� ����� ����� ��	�
��� ��� ����� ����� �������� !�����"��	� #$%&�� �%�$'	 �%�$'	 �%�$'	()*(+*,, ,((((-.-. /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ -ABC(B +()CD)444444444444444 B-.C(?444444444444444 � -ABC(B (C((()*(+*,, ,((((-?-D 1�"�E40�F��G��4H40GGIJ����G ��:;� 4<��� ��:6�"��K4>.,*,?@ AL??-C(( +LD-.C,(444444444444 BLD,.C?(444444444444 � AL??-C(( (C((()*(+*,, ,((((-.D- M�N82O4/108ML4PP; ��:M��Q�4P� �"4!IR�G�"4>.,*,?@ BL)-(C(( D.,C((444444444444444 ).?C((444444444444444 � BL)-(C(( (C((()*(+*,, ,((((-.-. /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ AA(C(B +.-C,B444444444444444 B?+C?(444444444444444 � AA(C(B (C((()*(+*,, ,((((-.-. /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ +,DC(B )(?C?D444444444444444 B,(CB,444444444444444 � +,DC(B (C((()*BA*,, ,((((A)D? M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 ��:6�J�����K4>.,*,?@ .A)CD? --(C(.444444444444444 ,B)CDB444444444444444 � .A)CD? (C((()*BA*,, ,((((A)D? M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 ��:�������� 4>.,*,?@ B.+LD-?C?. B,-LD.(C)D44444444 +?LD??C+?4444444444 � B.+LD-?C?. (C((()*BA*,, ,((((A)D? M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�4>M:�I���I�4+AT@ -LAB)C(+ -LAB)C(+444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( -LAB)C(+()*BA*,, ,((((A)D? M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�>2:�I���I�4,.T@ )L,D+CA, :444444444444444444444 )L,D+CA,444444444444 ! (C(( )L,D+CA,()*BA*,, ,((((A)D? M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�4>;"��G���I�,.T@ )L,D+CA, :444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( )L,D+CA,()*BA*,, ,((((A)DA M�N82O4/108ML4PP; ��:M��Q�4P� �"4!IR�G�"4>.,*,?@ .(C(( -(C+(44444444444444444 BDCA(44444444444444444 � .(C(( (C((()*BA*,, ,((((A)A, /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ .-DC(B -+AC+D444444444444444 ,B,C-,444444444444444 � .-DC(B (C((()*,)*,, ,((((A?,) 2/<5M ��:43���:4!IG�40JJ�>.,*,?@ ,L+?)C.? BL.??C),444444444444 AD-C+A444444444444444 � ,L+?)C.? (C((()*,)*,, ,((((A.D, /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ -,?C(B )?(CB.444444444444444 B+.C?+444444444444444 � -,?C(B (C((()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M47�U46V594H4<V4>M:�I���I�4+AT@ +.(C?, +.(C?,444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( +.(C?,()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M47�U46V594H4<V4>2:�I���I�4,.T@ ,.AC)- :444444444444444444444 ,.AC)-444444444444444 ! (C(( ,.AC)-()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M47�U46V594H4<V4>;"��G���I�,.T@ ,.AC)- :444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( ,.AC)-()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 ��:6�J�����K4>.,*,?@ BL+--C,( BL(+.C.+444444444444 +(.C+A444444444444444 � BL+--C,( (C((()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 ��:�������� 4>.,*,?@ ,((L,-+C-? B++LB?)C)(44444444 -AL(.BC,?4444444444 � ,((L,-+C-? (C((()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�4>M:�I���I�4+AT@ DLA,?C+D DLA,?C+D444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( DLA,?C+D()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�>2:�I���I�4,.T@ -LA-BC-( :444444444444444444444 -LA-BC-(444444444444 ! (C(( -LA-BC-(()*,)*,, ,((((A?,B M5/P784608410<�8462197!264M763 !��:M616M4594P�S�4!I���J�I�4>;"��G���I�,.T@ -LA-BC-( :444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 ! (C(( -LA-BC-(()*)(*,, ,((((.BD- /0112334/5678266462197!26478! ��:;� 4<��� ��:6��==4>.,*,?@ -D+C(B +,.CAD444444444444444 BAAC),444444444444444 � -D+C(B (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((:444444444444444444444 :444444444444444444444 (C(( (C((+,-LD(DC.A ,D.L..+CB- BB?LDB)CB+ )DBL.-,C+. )+LB-.C,D!����=�J���G4I=4M�GWCNX42�F�� 44440SIR��4,(,,*()*(+ DL??-C()Y44444444,(,,*()*BA B??L.-+CB+Y444 ;"��G���I�:4 DL,,,C+.4444444444444,(,,*()*,) ,,ALA.AC-?Y4444,(,,*()*)( -D+C(BY4444444444 4 (C((1�JI�J�"�F(C((1�JI�J�"�F�; )DBL.-,C+.44444444 (C((1�JI�J�"�F!0; )+LB-.C,D4444444444 (C((1�JI�J�"�F+,-LD(DC.AY4444444;������F4WK ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ444444444444<���4[IRJX M���0���IU�F4WK ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ ZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ4444444444440�F���4<�""�� M���

�����\�����4���]����4̂���4��_��̀]������]4�a4�b��#�̀����4a��4_�4���̀��4�#��������4cde4fgff

hijklm4nopp qrsrpottu4vrswxy4zu4hijklm4nopp4qopx{4|}||~}�~��4��{|�{�}4�}��}}�nrttx�m4�wy�xoqrsrpottu4vrswxy4zu4nrttx�m4�wy�xo4qopx{4|}||~}�~��4��{��{}�4�}��}}�



����������	
������ ������� ������������ ������������ ��!"�#$�%�&''�()(*)+�,-)./012�/3.4+5*6453.789:98�;<=>?@AB>@<=� ����CDEF8�;<=>?@AB>@<=� ����GHI=JK�:I@LAB?MILI=>M�N�89:98 OOP�QOR�Q�GHI=JK�:I@LAB?MILI=>M�N�CDEF8 Q�Q�����R�;@>K�<S�TUIVMV=><=�TVKLI=>M Q���Q��PWX=>I?IM>�X=J<LI ����Y>ZI?�:I@LAB?MILI=>MN�E@MJ ����[)22�5.\35/)�],0().427DG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �a�aO�OO bRPQ��Qc:VUdZ�G=eI?MI=�f�GMM<J@V>IM �a�aO�OO bP���R���c8Yg_Ch�D:G_8��iiT �a�aO�OO bQ��R����cDG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �a�aO�OO bPP���QcDG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �a�aO�OO b�OW��Qc8FDiX_�9G_�:GEY_�9C:̀ X;C9�8X9̂ �aQPaO�OO bQ���WOR�Q�c8Yg_Ch�D:G_8��iiT �aQPaO�OO b�����cDG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �aQPaO�OO b�RW��QcCDEF8 �aO�aO�OO bO�������cDG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �aO�aO�OO bRO���Qc8FDiX_�9G_�:GEY_�9C:̀ X;C9�8X9̂ �aO�aO�OO bQ��O��ROc8FDiX_�9G_�:GEY_�9C:̀ X;C9�8X9̂ �aO�aO�OO bOOO�P�Q�O�cDG::Ĉ �̂DF9X_C99�9C:̀ X;C9�X_; �a��aO�OO bRW���Qc����������	
������ j�jk��� jlm�nlon�pon��������������:<B=e@=H ���R��������������������������������������	
�j�jk��� jlm�nlonjp��������������T?IdV?Ie�AK����qqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqq qqqqqqqqqqqqqq���������������������������������EV>>�r<BJs 8V>IGdd?<tIe�AK����qqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqqq qqqqqqqqqqqqqq���������������������������������G=e?IV�E@UUI? 8V>I

uvwxy��yz{�wv|}w~

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��¡��������



Item 8.A 

   
  

  1 
 

  
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve and Adopt the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Capital and  

Operating Expenditure Budget 
 
 

Summary: 
 

The DERWA Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA) provides that the Authority must adopt an 
annual fiscal year budget showing expenditures and means of financing such expenditures.   
 
Changes from Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022 Budget:  The existing capital appropriations increased to 
$106.827 million to fund the projects in the FY 2022-2023 capital plan.  Previously approved future 
appropriations have been utilized and adjusted accordingly.  Capital projects continuing from the FY 
2021-2022 budget are the Permanent Supplemental Water Supply, New/Replacement Capital <$50K, 
Recycled Water Treatment Plant Expansion, Tertiary Influent Pump Station (TIPS) Variable Frequency 
Drives Upgrade, Air Relief Valve Rehabilitation/Replacements, Chlorine Mixer Replacements, SFUV 
Cable Harness Replacement, UV Lamp Electrical Connector Replacements, and HVAC Replacements. 
 
The FY 2022-2023 proposed operating budget has been increased by $377,560 or (6.5%) and the 
budgeted recycled water deliveries for FY 2022-2023 are approximately 5,668 acre-feet. DSRSD has 
submitted a budget of $4.000 million for the operations and maintenance of the DERWA project for FY 
2022-2023. Generally, the operations increases are attributable to: 
 

• Staff time to fill, drain and clean DSRSD’s holding basins for dry weather storage for 
 DERWA for sustained recycled water production, 

• Treatment costs for the new Central Contra Costa Sanitary District diversion operations, 
• Increased costs for treatment chemicals, 
• Increased labor hours and costs including a 2.75% CPI increase, and 
• Additional periodic occurring maintenance due to plant reaching its 15-year useful life 

Agency contributions plus estimated revenue from water sales to the City of Pleasanton will cover the 
$6.216 million budget for the O&M and administrative expenses and debt service payments.  The FY 
2022-2023 budget for the state loan repayment is $1.646 million.   
 
Expenditures and Appropriations:   
 
The capital expenditure for FY 2022-2023 is $.987 million. The required contribution for operations from 
the Member Agencies will be based on the actual water sales for FY 2022-2023, currently projected at 
67% DSRSD and 33% EBMUD. Pleasanton will continue to pay a per acre-foot charge for water 
delivered. The required contributions for the state loan repayment will be based on the allocation of 
capital facilities.  
 
For DSRSD, the estimated FY 2022-2023 contribution is $3.248 million for the operating budget and 
$.494 million for the capital budget; for EBMUD the estimated contribution is $2.033 million for the 
operating budget and $.335 million for the capital budget; for City of Pleasanton the estimated  
payments for recycled water deliveries are $0.934 million.  

  



Report by: ___JR____     
  2  
 

 
 
 
 
Table 13 shows the Capital Project expenses and cost sharing in adherence to the adopted Water 
Sales Agreement.   
 
Funding:  The Capital Program has secured $7.5 million in grants, $24.7 million in loans from 
Proposition 13 funding, and $14.9 million in federal funding.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager and Treasurer recommend the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by 
Resolution, the DERWA Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 
 

May 16, 2022 
 

Attachment  
 
     1.  DERWA Resolution No. 22-5 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment 1 

 
3 

 
DERWA 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-5 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 CAPITAL 
AND OPERATING EXPENDITURE BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement under which DSRSD•EBMUD 

Recycled Water Authority (DERWA) was formed provides that before the year end, the 

Authority’s Board of Directors must adopt an annual budget for the following fiscal year showing 

proposed expenditures and the proposed means of financing such expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the DERWA Treasurer and the Member Agencies have reviewed, and the 

Authority Manager has recommended, a proposed Capital and Operating Expenditure Budget 

for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023; and presented the proposed budget at the May 16, 2022 

DERWA Board Meeting; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has considered all the oral and written information 

presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of 

Alameda and Contra Costa, California, as follows: 

1. An operating budget appropriation totaling $6.216 million is hereby approved and 

adopted for FY 2022-2023 as presented in “Attachment A”.  

2.  The capital budget appropriation is increased from $106.399 million to $106.827 million 

as presented in “Attachment A”. Adjustments between projects shall be subject to the 

same limits established by DERWA accounting and control procedures for expenditures. 

For the operating budget, appropriations are made by work element.  

3. In order to provide for completion of work on projects authorized but not completed as of 

the close of the fiscal year, balances remaining at the close of FY 2022-2023 are hereby 

appropriated for expenditure in the subsequent fiscal year, in addition to the applicable 

fiscal year appropriations for capital and operating expenditures. 

4. The Source of Funds for the capital and operating expenditures for FY 2022-2023 shall 

be from Member Agency contributions, payments made by City of Pleasanton in 

accordance with the January 7, 2014 Agreement to Provide Recycled Water Services by 

and between DERWA and the City of Pleasanton, state and federal grants or loans, 



DERWA 
Res. No. 22-5 

 
4 

and/or borrowed sources such as but not limited to commercial paper as prudently 

determined by the DERWA Treasurer. 

5. After consideration of DERWA reserves and working fund balances as required under 

Article 13 of the Joint Powers Agreement and given the Source of Funds as described in 

paragraph 4 above, the capital and operating expenditure budget projects a revenue 

shortfall. 

6. In accordance with Article 18 of the Joint Powers Agreement, a series of demands shall 

be made of the Member Agencies for funds equal to the revenue shortfall as determined 

by the percentages in the Water Sales Agreement. 

7. All expenditures shall be authorized, and revenue shall be collected in accordance with 

DERWA’s adopted Accounting Control Procedures. 

8. The Treasurer shall analyze cash flow needs and invoice Member Agencies as needed 

to maintain a prudent and sufficient working capital balance for DERWA. 

9. EBMUD and DSRSD shall share in the expense for the operations and maintenance of 

the DERWA facilities based on their proportion of actual water deliveries.  

10. All expenditures in FY 2022-2023, except those listed in the operating budget, are 

capital expenditures. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 16th day of May 2022, and passed by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
   

NOES: 
 

ABSENT: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Marisol Rubio, DERWA Chair 
 

ATTEST 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole M. Genzale, Authority Secretary 
 
 
 
 



  Attachment A 

 

 
DSRSD ● EBMUD RECYCLED WATER 

AUTHORITY 
 
 

SAN RAMON VALLEY RECYCLED 
WATER PROGRAM 

 
Proposed 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET 
 

May 16, 2022 
 



 TOC 
 

 DERWA FY 2022-23 BUDGET 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
            Page 
 
Budget Summary and Recommendations ........................................     1 

Resolution Approving and Adopting Capital & Operating Budget.....     3 

DERWA Program Budget ..................................................................     5 

DERWA Source of Funds Summary .................................................     6 

DERWA Operating Budget ................................................................     7 

DERWA Capital Budget and Cost Sharing .......................................    11 

Project Element Map .........................................................................    12 

Detailed Project Summaries ..............................................................    13 

    Permanent Supplemental Water Supply …… ...............................    14 

 New/Replacement Capital <$50K each  .......................................    15 

 Recycled Water Treatment Plant Expansion ................................    16 

 TIPS VFD Upgrades .....................................................................    17 

 Air Relief Valve Rehabilitation ......................................................    18 

 Chlorine Mixer Replacement ........................................................    19

 SFUV Cable Harness Replacement .............................................    20 

 UV Lamp Electrical Connector Replacements .............................    21 

 HVAC Replacements ....................................................................    22

  

 



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23

Table 1

Appropriations ($000's)

Prior FY23

Appr Appr

Capital Appropriations 106,399  428  

Operating Approriations 73,777  6,216  

Table 2
Capital Program
Cash Flow ($000's)

Prior Estimated Proposed
Spending FY22 FY23 Future Total

Completed Projects 78,679  78,679  

Continuing Projects 21,280  227  987  2,454  24,948  
Capitalized Interest 
during construction 2,200  2,200  

Contingency 1,000  1,000  

Total 102,159  227  987  3,454  106,827  

Table 3
Operating Budget ($000's)

Estimated Budgeted Proposed
FY22 FY22 FY23

Expenses Expenses Expenses Difference

Operating Budget 3,810 4,192 4,570 378
Debt Service 1,646 1,646 1,646 0

Total 5,456 5,838 6,216 378

 5



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23

Table 4

DERWA FY23 PROJECTED CONTRIBUTION BY AGENCY

($000's)

Estimated Projected
FY22 FY23

CAPITAL

AGENCY CONTRIBUTION
DSRSD 105  494  
EBMUD 61  335  

PLEASANTON CONTR 61  158  
STATE LOAN/GRANT

TOTAL CAPITAL 227  987  

OPERATING

AGENCY CONTRIBUTION*
DSRSD 2,905  3,248  
EBMUD 1,715  2,033  

PLEASANTON PAYMENT 836  934  

TOTAL OPERATING 5,456  6,216  

*Agency contributions are calculated based on O&M costs, administrative costs and debt service costs.
For FY23, O&M and administrative costs, less payments from Pleasanton are split
66.8% DSRSD and 33.2% EBMUD based on the projected water deliveries and will be adjusted at 
the end of the water year to reflect actual deliveries per Section V.A. of the sales agreement.
Debt service costs are split based on the assigned capital to each agency at the time the payments 
are made.

6



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23
OPERATING BUDGET

Table 5

Estimated Proposed
FY22 FY22 FY23 Budget

Work Element Budget Expenses Budget Difference

Program Manager 280,500$    185,400$      245,000$   (35,500)$   
Treasurer 87,000      80,000      100,000 13,000
Legal Counsel 75,000      11,000      75,000 0
Secretary 20,000      9,000      20,000 0
Other (Insurance) 130,000     125,000     130,000 0
Operations 3,599,940  3,400,000  4,000,000 400,060
Debt Service 1,645,513  1,645,513  1,645,513 0

Total 5,837,953 5,455,913 6,215,513 377,560  

7



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23

DERWA PROGRAM MANAGER
Table 6

Estimated Proposed

FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

Authority Manager $185,000 $140,000 $198,000

Staff 36,000 25,000 10,000

Expenses 800 400 800

DSRSD charges 1,000 1,000

Travel 0 0

Office supplies 200 200

Other 7,500 5,000 5,000

Public Information 30,000 15,000 20,000

Consultant Support 20,000 10,000

Total 280,500$  185,400$   245,000$   

DERWA TREASURER DETAIL
Table 7

Estimated Proposed

FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

Salary $12,000 $25,000 $25,000

Cost Accounting 65,000 50,000 65,000

Audit 10,000 5,000 10,000
Commerical Paper Fees -  

TOTAL 87,000  80,000  100,000  

8



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23

DERWA LEGAL COUNSEL
Table 8

Estimated Proposed

FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

Contract $75,000 $11,000 $75,000

DERWA SECRETARY DETAIL
Table 9

Estimated Proposed

FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

Salary $18,000 $9,000 $18,000
Expenses 2,000 2,000
Training 0

TOTAL 20,000 9,000 20,000

DERWA OTHER DETAIL
Table 10

Estimated Proposed

FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

Insurance $130,000 $125,000 $130,000

TOTAL 130,000 125,000 130,000

9



DERWA PROGRAM BUDGET FY23

DERWA OPERATIONS
Table 11

Estimated Proposed
FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

DSRSD Operations $3,599,940 3,400,000 $4,000,000
CCCSD Treatment

TOTAL 3,599,940 3,400,000 4,000,000  

DERWA DEBT SERVICE
Table 12

Estimated Proposed
FY22 Budget FY22 Expenses FY23 Budget

State Loan Payments $1,645,513 $1,645,513 $1,645,513

TOTAL 1,645,513 1,645,513 1,645,513  

10



Table 13 Capital Project Costs and Cost Sharing FY23
($000's)

Project Lead Agency Total Costs DSRSD EBMUD PLEASANTON
Competed Projects 

Pipeline Reach 1 DSRSD 7,561$   4,384$   3,177$   

Pipeline Reach 2 DSRSD & EBMUD 4,558 3,882 676

Pipeline Reach 3 DSRSD 2,286 1,719 567

Pipeline Reach 4 DSRSD & EBMUD 1,615 364 1,251

Pipeline Reach 5 EBMUD 1,431 200 1,231

Pipeline Reach 6 EBMUD 6,760 431 6,329

Pump Stations DSRSD 8,563 6,777 1,786

Water Tanks EBMUD 12,393 7,222 5,171

Treatment Plant DSRSD 15,733 8,949 6,784

Backbone Corrosion DERWA 1,109 122 987

Fine Screening DSRSD 927 529 398

MR/UV Control Upgrade DSRSD 144 82 62

EBMUD Distribution DERWA 602 0 602

Air Relief DERWA 40 23 17

Pump Station Phase 2* DERWA 3,463 0 3,463

6th Sand Filter DSRSD 255 0 0 255

MF Membrane Replace DSRSD 700 335 251 114

SCADA DSRSD 341 194 147

PSR1 VFD Replacement DSRSD 566 334 142 90

SFUV Wiper Arm 
Replacement DSRSD 251 115 68 68

SFUV/MF Ops Analysis DSRSD 50 23 14 13

Studies and Predesigns DERWA 5,746 2,880 2,866

Program Planning DERWA 3,585 1,757 1,828

Completed Projects Subtotal 78,679 40,322 37,817 540

Continuing and New Projects
New/Replacement Capital 
<$50k DERWA 1,408$   591$   436$   381
Permanent Supplemental 
Supply DERWA 3,372 1,956 1,416

RWTP Expansion DSRSD 19,589 9,011 5,289 5,289

TIPS VRF Upgrade DSRSD 63 29 17 17

Air Relief Valve Replace DSRSD 135 62 37 36

Chlorine Mixer Replace DSRSD 55 25 15 15

SFUV Cable Replace DSRSD 150 69 41 40

UV Lamp Electrical Con DSRSD 100 46 27 27

HVAC Replace DSRSD 76 35 21 20

Contingency DERWA 1,000 333 333 333

Capitalized Interest DERWA 2,200 1,184 1,016

Continuing Projects Subtotal 28,148 13,341 8,648

TOTAL 106,827$   53,663$   46,465$   6,158$   
100% 50.2% 43.5% 5.8%

*Pump Station Phase 2 only contains DERWA local cost share of Corps of Engineers' Project

11



12



13 

DERWA Capital Projects 
 
 
 CONTINUING CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 
 PERMANENT SUPPLEMENTAL WATER SUPPLY 

 
NEW/REPLACEMENT CAPITAL <$50K EACH 
 

 RECYCLED WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION 
  
 TIPS VFD UPGRADES  
  

AIR RELIEF VALVE REHABILITATION 
 
CHLORINE MIXER REPLACEMENT 
 
SFUV CABLE HARNESS REPLACEMENT 
 
UV LAMP ELECTRICAL CONNECTOR REPLACEMENTS 
 
HVAC REPLACEMENTS 

 
 

  CAPITAL PROJECTS COMPLETED in FY22 
 

SFUV & MF OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS 
 

    



14 
 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 
 

Project:  Permanent Supplemental Water Supply  
 
Description:      This project will provide Supplemental Water for DERWA that is 
needed to avoid peak month supply shortfalls that could occur during summer months.  
Alternative sources of supply currently under consideration are additional supply of 
treated wastewater effluent from Livermore and/or raw wastewater from Central Contra 
Costa Sanitary District (CCCSD), and local groundwater.  Options to increase storage 
will also be evaluated, including the current treatment plant holding basins. Preliminary 
engineering studies of the alternatives were completed in 2005.  The January 17, 2014 
DERWA/Pleasanton Recycled Water Services agreement allows DERWA to utilize 
Pleasanton wastewater that is not used by the Pleasanton recycled water program.  
Current 5-year recycled water demand projections by the participating agencies show 
the peak month demand will exceed the wastewater flows from DSRSD and 
Pleasanton.  In FY23, DERWA will also work on projects to use groundwater from local 
wells and continue studies of opportunities to use groundwater from the Fringe Basin to 
meet peak demands.   
 
Lead Agency: DERWA  
Project Manager: DERWA Authority Manager 
 
Cost Sharing:         58 % DSRSD  42 % EBMUD  0% Pleasanton 
  
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  __0%__ Design ___0%_ Construction      
 
In Service Date:   CCCSD Diversion (Spring 2021) 

($000) 
Supplemental Water Supply        

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY 22 

Proposed 
FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Supplemental  DERWA Planning  271   -     -     478   749  

Supply   Design  7   -     -     212   219  
    Property  8   -     -     -     8  
    Construction  1,176   1   400   690   2,267  

    
Const. 
Mgmt.  -     -     -     110   110  

    Admin  3   -     -     -     3  
    Other  16   -     -     -     16  
    Total  1,481   1   400  1,490   3,372  

 
Total Project Element Costs:  $3,372,000 
 
 
 
 



15 
 

    
Capital Improvement Project Summary 

 
Project:  New/Replacement Capital < $50k 
 
Description: This program runs from FY11 through FY23 and provides funding 
for the acquisition of capital items for the DERWA facilities that cost less than $50,000 
each.  Included are new capital items needed for improved reliability and/or efficiency, 
required by new regulation, and for the replacement or rehabilitation of existing assets 
that have reached the end of their useful life.  Projects for FY23 include a battery 
backup for the SCADA controllers, sunshades, bird abatement items for the treatment 
plant, and replacements of a flow meter and analyzer. 
 
 
Lead Agency: DERWA 
Project Manager: DERWA Authority Manager 
 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
 Design               42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
 Property 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 

 Construction 42% DSRSD 31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
 Const Mgmt 42% DSRSD    31% EBMUD 27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date:  FY 2023 
 ($000) 
New/Replacement Capital <$50k     

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY 22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

New/Replacement 
Capital <$50k 
Each 

DERWA Planning  -     -     -     -     -    
  Design  -     -     -     151   151  
  Property  -     -     -     -     -    
  Construction  326   -     208   700   1,234  

  
Const. 
Mgmt.  -     -     -     -     -    

  Admin  -     -     -     23   23  
  Other  -     -     -     -     -    

    

Total  326   -     208   874   1,408  

          
 
Total Project Element Costs:  $1,408,000 



16 
 

 
 
 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 
 
Project:  Recycled Water Treatment Plant Expansion 
 
Description:   This project expands the recycled water sand filtration and 
ultraviolet (UV) disinfection facility to meet the DSRSD, EBMUD and Pleasanton’s water 
demand projection. The Microfiltration/Ultraviolet Disinfection Plant can provide the 
needed peak capacity for the interim if needed.  This project will expand the facility 
capacity from 11.6 to 16.2 mgd. 
 
The expansion includes the construction of high-rate ballasted flocculation basins 
upstream of the existing tertiary filters improving the quality of the filter feed allowing 
them to operate at a higher loading rate. It also includes the addition of twenty UV 
disinfection modules, two tertiary influent pumps, two high lift product water pumps and 
associated electrical and mechanical equipment.  Construction was completed in 2018 
with testing and filter rating continuing into 2022. Final permitting costs will happen in 
FY23.   $2.5 million in grant funding from the state will be used to offset capital costs. 
    
Lead Agency:  DSRSD 
Project Manager:  Staff 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2019 

($000)   

Project 
Lead 
Agency Activity 

Prior 
Spending 

Estimated 
FY22 

Proposed 
FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Recycled 
Water 

Treatment 
Plant 

Expansion 

DSRSD Planning  24   -     -     -     24  
  Design  1,881   -     -     -     1,881  
  Property  -     -     -     -     -    
  Construction  15,319   -     -     -     15,319  
  Const. Mgmt.  1,979   -     -     -     1,979  
  Admin/Permitting  270   81   35   -     386  
  Other  -     -     -     -     -    

    

Total  19,473   81   35   -     19,589  
          

Total Project Element Costs: $19,589,000 



17 
 

 
Capital Improvement Project Summary 

 
Project:  TIPS VFD Upgrades 
 
Description:   The existing variable frequency drives (VFDs) for the 3 original 
Tertiary Influent Pump Station (TIPS) pumps are 15+ years old and are obsolete.  The 
scope of this project is to upgrade the 3 VFDs to a newer make and model.  While 
performing the VFD upgrade, the industrial control network will also be upgraded to 
Ethernet connectivity to allow for ease maintenance and faster recovery from 
breakdowns.  The District will hire a contractor and integrator to perform installation, 
PLC programming, SCADA configuration, testing, and startup. 
   
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2023  

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

TIPS  
VFD 
Upgrades 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 
  Design 0 0 0 0 0 
  Property 0 0 0 0 0 
  Construction 0 0 63 0 63 

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

  Admin 0 0 0 0 0 
  Other 0 0 0 0 0 

    

Total 0 0 63 0 63 

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $63,000 



18 
 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 
 
Project:  Air Relief Valve Rehabilitation/Replacement 
 
Description:    A project to service all air relief valves and rehabilitate or replace 
them if needed. There are sixty-eight air relief valves in the DERWA system, and the 
project is proposed to take place over the next three years. The proposed budget for the 
project is $135,000, with $45,000 budgeted in FY23. 
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2022/23/24 

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Air 
Relief 
Valve 
Rehab/ 
Replace 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 
  Design 0 0 0 0 0 
  Property 0 0 0 0 0 
  Construction 0 0 45 90 135 

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

  Admin 0 0 0 0 0 
  Other 0 0 0 0 0 

    

Total 0 0 45 90 135 

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $135,000 



19 
 

  
Capital Improvement Project Summary 

 
Project:  Chlorine Mixer Replacement 
 
Description:  The project is a replacement of the existing chlorine mixer located in the 
wet well. The current mixer is an incorrect mixer for the application because it is 
designed for chlorine gas, but the District uses liquid chlorine. The result has been 
inefficient mixing. To remedy this, staff recommends replacing the mixer with one 
designed to use liquid chlorine to improve mixing. 
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2023 

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

Chlorine 
Mixer 
Replacement 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0  -    
  Design 0 0 0 0  -    
  Property 0 0 0 0  -    
  Construction 0 13 42 0  55  

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0  -    

  Admin 0 0 0 0  -    
  Other 0 0 0 0  -    

    

Total  -     13   42   -     55  

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $55,000 



20 
 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 
 
Project:  SFUV Cable Harness Replacement 
 
Description:  The SFUV system has two channels with five banks each, and seven 
modules per bank (seventy modules total). Each module has one pair of cable 
harnesses. Ten of the seventy modules are less than three years old and do not require 
replacement. Fourteen of the modules had the cable harnesses replaced in FY21, 
leaving forty-six modules remaining. District staff purchased the required materials in 
FY22 and will replace the remaining forty-six modules  over the course of the next two 
years.  
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2023/24 

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

SFUV Cable 
Harness 
Replacement 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0  -    
  Design 0 0 0 0  -    
  Property 0 0 0 0  -    
  Construction 0 82 68 0  150  

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0  -    

  Admin 0 0 0 0  -    
  Other 0 0 0 0  -    

    

Total  -     82   68   -     150  

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $150,000 



21 
 

 
Capital Improvement Project Summary 

 
Project:  UV Lamp Electrical Connector Replacement 
 
Description:  There are 1,200 UV lamps in the SFUV system and each lamp has one 
electrical connector. District staff estimates that just over 1,000 connectors need 
replacement due to water intrusion from worn out wiper O-rings. 
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2022/23 

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

UV Lamp 
Electrical 
Connector 
Replacements 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0  -    
  Design 0 0 0 0  -    
  Property 0 0 0 0  -    
  Construction 0 50 50 0  100  

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0  -    

  Admin 0 0 0 0  -    
  Other 0 0 0 0  -    

    

Total  -     50   50   -     100  

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $100,000 



22 
 

Capital Improvement Project Summary 
 
Project:  HVAC Replacements 
 
Description:  This project will replace the HVAC systems in Buildings M, O, & R.  Each 
of these current systems have reached their useful lives.  The cost for FY23 is $76,000. 
     
Lead Agency:  DSRSD/DERWA 
Project Manager:  DERWA Authority Manager 
  
Cost Sharing: Planning   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Design   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Property   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
  Construction   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 

  Const Mgmt   46% DSRSD 27% EBMUD   27% Pleasanton 
 
Grant/Loan Eligible:  0%     Design       0%     Construction      
In Service Date: 2023 

($000) 
TIPS  VFD Upgrades      

Project 
Lead 

Agency Activity 
Prior 

Spending 
Estimated 

FY22 
Proposed 

FY23 Future 

Approved 
Budget 
Total 

HVAC 
Replacement 

DERWA Planning 0 0 0 0 0 
  Design 0 0 0 0 0 
  Property 0 0 0 0 0 
  Construction 0 0 76 0 76 

  
Const. 
Mgmt. 0 0 0 0 0 

  Admin 0 0 0 0 0 
  Other 0 0 0 0 0 

    

Total 0 0 76 0 76 

          
 

Total Project Element Costs: $76,000 



 

Item 8.B 

Prepared by _JR__        
 
                                               
   
 

 
 

DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Approve and Establish the Location, Time and Place of Regular DERWA Board Meetings  

 
 
Summary: 
 
Per Resolution No. 20-2, DERWA holds its Board of Directors meetings at the Dublin San Ramon 
Services District (DSRSD) District Office, located at 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, CA 94568, at 
6 p.m. on the first Monday in February, the third Monday in May, and the fourth Monday in March, 
July, September, and November. The DERWA Board adopted Resolution No. 20-2 on May 18, 
2020, to reestablish its meeting location at the DSRSD District Office after necessary repairs 
caused by a fire service line leak on November 11, 2018 were completed and the DSRSD 
Boardroom was declared safe.  
 
At the March 28, 2022 regular meeting, the Board discussed reducing the number of regular 
DERWA regular Board meetings from six to three meetings per year, as two to three of the 
scheduled meetings were usually cancelled. A reduction in the frequency of scheduled Board 
meetings will save staff time and maximize work processes.  
 
This item establishes the Board shall hold DERWA’s regular meetings on the fourth Monday in 
January, April, and September of each year at the DSRSD District Office, with a start time of 6 
p.m.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Authority Manager recommends the DERWA Board of Directors approve, by Resolution, that 
DERWA shall hold its regular meetings on the fourth Monday in January, April, and September, 
at 6 p.m. at the Dublin San Ramon Services District, 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 
94568, and rescind Resolution No. 20-2. 
 
May 16, 2022 
 
Attachment 
 

1. DERWA Resolution 22-6 



  Attachment 1 

 
DERWA 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-6 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME, AND PLACE AT WHICH REGULAR 
MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL BE HELD AND 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 20-2 
 

WHEREAS, the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority ("Authority") requires regular 

meetings to conduct the business of the Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, upon which the Authority is 

organized, requires the Authority to determine the frequency of regular meetings and specify by 

resolution the date, time, and place at which regular meetings shall be held; and  

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board adopted Resolution No. 20-2 on May 18, 2020, which 

rescinded Resolution No. 19-1 and reestablished the time and place for regular meetings of the 

DERWA Board on the first Monday in February, the third Monday in May, and the fourth 

Mondays in March, July, September, and November at 6 p.m. at the Dublin San Ramon 

Services District’s (DSRSD) District Office after necessary repairs caused by a fire service line 

leak on November 11, 2018 were completed and the DSRSD Boardroom was declared safe; 

and  

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board desires to reduce the number of DERWA’s regular 

Board meetings from six to three meetings annually, as a reduction in the frequency of 

scheduled meetings will save staff time and maximize work processes.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water 

Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, 

California, hereby resolves as follows:  

1. The regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the fourth 

Monday in January, April, and September, at 6 p.m. at the Dublin San Ramon Services District, 

7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 94568 commencing May 2022, and continuing until 

this resolution is rescinded.  

2. Resolution No. 20-2 attached as Exhibit “A,” is hereby rescinded. 

 

 

 

 

 



DERWA 
Res. No. 22-6 
 
 

 - 2 - 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, 

a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its 

Regular Meeting held on the 16th day of May 2022, and passed by the following vote:  

 

 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marisol Rubio, DERWA Chair 

 
ATTEST:   
   Nicole Genzale, District Secretary 
 
 
 



DERWA 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DSRSD•EBMUD RECYCLED 
WATER AUTHORITY ESTALISHING THE TIME AND PLACE AT WHICH REGULAR 
MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL BE HELD AND 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 19-1 

WHEREAS, the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority ("Authority") requires regular 

meetings to conduct the business of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, upon which the Authority is 

organized, requires the Authority to determine the frequency of regular meetings and specify by 

resolution the date, time, and place at which regular meetings shall be held; and 

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board adopted Resolution No. 19-1 on February 4, 2019, 

which rescinded Resolution No. 17-2 and established the time and place for regular meetings of 

the DERWA Board on the first Monday in February, the third Monday in May, and the fourth 

Mondays in March, July, September, and November at 6 p.m. at the Shannon Community 

Center, Ambrose Hall, 11600 Shannon Avenue, Dublin, California 94568 after its usual meeting 

location at the Dublin San Ramon Services District (DSRSD) District Office was rendered 

unsafe as a result of a fire service line leak beneath the building causing flooding, water 

damage, and an inoperable fire suppression system; and 

WHEREAS, since the flood occurred, DSRSD's District Office has undergone the 

necessary repairs and the Boardroom has been declared safe and available to hold Board 

meetings again; and 

WHEREAS, the DERWA Board desires to return to its regular meeting place at the 

Dublin San Ramon Services District ("DSRSD"), 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 

94568. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water 

Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, 

California, hereby resolves: 

That the regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the first Monday in 

February, the third Monday in May, and the fourth Mondays in March, July, September, and 

November, at 6 p.m. at the new location of Dublin San Ramon Services District ("DSRSD"), 

7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California 94568 commencing May 2020, and continuing until 

this resolution is rescinded, and 

That Resolution No. 19-1, attached as Exhibit "A," is hereby rescinded. 

Exhibit A





  Item 8.C 

Prepared by: JR      

 
 

 DERWA 
Summary & Recommendation 

 
Appointment of Authority Manager 

 
 
Summary: 
 
DERWA has had seven Authority Managers since its inception in July 1995; Bert Michalczyk 
(September 1995), Laura Johnson (August 2001), Robert Whitley (July 2002), Robert Baker 
(December 2002), James Bewley (February 2006), Michael Tognolini (April 2016), and John 
Rossi (June 2019). Mr. Rossi’s contract to serve as the Authority Manager will expire on June 30, 
2022. From 1995 to 2002 and from 2016 to 2019, a senior staff member from one of the Member 
Agencies has served the role of DERWA Authority Manager.  In consultation with DSRSD and 
EBMUD management, it was decided to recommend to the DERWA Board of Directors that the 
concept of the Member Agencies providing staff to serve as Authority Manager on a rotational 
basis be resumed. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Member Agencies recommend the DERWA Board of Directors, appoint, by Resolution, 
DSRSD Assistant General Manager Jan Lee as Authority Manager, effective July 1, 2022.  
 
May 16, 2022 
 
Attachment 
 

1. DERWA Resolution No. 22-7 



  Attachment 1 
   

 

 
DERWA 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-7 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DSRSD●EBMUD RECYCLED WATER 
AUTHORITY APPOINTING AUTHORITY MANAGER 
 
 WHEREAS, the DSRSD●EBMUD Recycled Water Authority (“DERWA”) requires the services of 

an Authority Manager who shall function as the chief executive officer of DERWA; and  
 WHEREAS, on May 24, 2019, the DERWA entered into an Agreement for Executive Staffing 

Services with Ralph Andersen & Associates to fulfill the Authority Manager role; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement for Executive Staffing Services, John Rossi has served as 

Authority Manager since June 1, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement for Executive Staffing Services expires on June 30, 2022; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors finds that in the initial years of DERWA’s formation, DERWA 

and its member agencies, DSRSD and EBMUD (the “Member Agencies”), have benefited from a balancing 
of responsibilities between the two Member Agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to resume the practice of appointing a senior staff 

member of a Member Agency to the position of Authority Manager. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD●EBMUD 

RECYCLED WATER AUTHORITY that Jan Lee, the Assistant General Manager of DSRSD, be appointed 

as the DERWA Authority Manager, effective July 1, 2022, to serve at the pleasure of and to carry out the 

will of the DERWA Board and, in that role, to represent equally the interests of each DERWA Member 

Agency. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors intends to evaluate the performance and 

appointment of the Authority Manager on at least a biannual basis or more frequently if events warrant.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the DSRSD•EBMUD Recycled Water Authority, a Joint 

Powers Authority, located in the Counties of Alameda and Contra Costa, California, at its  

Regular Meeting held on the 16th day of May 2022, and passed by the following vote: 
  

AYES: 
   
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
 
 
       _________________________ 

Marisol Rubio, DERWA Chair 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________________ 
       Nicole Genzale, Authority Secretary  
 


	20220516 DERWA Board Agenda
	Agenda Item 5.A - Declaration of Teleconference Meetings
	Agenda Item 7.A - Draft Minutes 20220328
	Agenda Item 7.B - Treasurer's Reports
	Agenda Item 8.A - Proposed FY22-23 Budget
	Agenda Item 8.B - Establish Location, Time and Place of Meetings
	Agenda Item 8.C - Appointment of Authority Manager



